

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER OF BUSINESS FOR THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE AND RELATED FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES AND RESCINDING ALL PRIOR ACTIONS TAKEN THERETO, AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 23559.

WHEREAS, it is the intent and desire of the City Council to conduct its business in an orderly and fair manner; and

WHEREAS, there are certain basic rights of due process and opportunity to address issues with equity, fairness, and equal protection of the law; and

WHEREAS, certain parliamentary procedures have been found to be useful in order to assure that the communication and process of government are fair, reasonable, and just; and

WHEREAS, the City has a duty to proceed with the business of government in an efficient and orderly fashion; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish uniform norms and procedures in order to accomplish these goals.

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Riverside as follows:

That the following shall be the Rules of Procedure and Order of Business of the City Council, and shall govern all proceedings of the City Council therein described, subject to the exceptions and deviations provided for in such rules.

Violation of these rules shall not be construed as a penal offense, excepting that breach of the peace or willful failure to comply with the lawful orders of the City Council or its presiding officer shall be punishable as misdemeanors under applicable law.

I
AUTHORITY

The Charter of the City of Riverside provides that the City Council shall determine its own rules and order of business. By virtue thereof, and when not in conflict with the Charter of the City of Riverside and the Constitution and laws of the State of California, the following set of rules shall be in effect upon adoption by the City Council and until such time as they are amended

1 or new rules adopted in the manner hereinafter provided and shall prevail to govern the order of
2 business of the City Council of the City of Riverside.

3 **II**

4 **ACT IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST**

5 A. City Council and staff shall recognize that stewardship of the public interest must be the
6 primary concern.

7 B. City Council will work for the common good of the people of Riverside.

8 C. City Council will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and transactions
9 coming before the City Council and Boards and Commissions.

10 **III**

11 **ADVOCACY**

12 A. City Council shall represent the official policies or positions of the City Council when
13 designated as delegates for this purpose.

14 B. When representing their individual opinions and positions, City Council shall explicitly
15 state they do not represent the City Council of the City, nor will they allow the inference that they
16 do.

17 **IV**

18 **DUTIES**

19 A. **DUTIES OF MAYOR; MAYOR PRO TEMPORE**

20 The Mayor shall be the presiding officer at all meetings of the City Council and shall have
21 a voice in all its proceedings but shall not vote except for appointments to City Boards &
22 Commissions or to break a City Council tie-vote which exists for any cause. The Mayor shall be
23 the official head of the City for all ceremonial purposes. The Mayor shall have the primary but
24 not exclusive responsibility for interpreting the policies, programs and needs of the city
25 government to the people, and of informing the people of any major change in policy or program.
26 The Mayor shall advise the City Council on all matters of policy and public relations and perform
27 such other duties as may be prescribed by the City Charter. At any time before the adjournment
28 of a meeting, the Mayor may, by public declaration spread upon the minutes of the meeting, veto

1 any formal action taken by vote of the City Council including any ordinance or resolution, except
2 an emergency ordinance, the annual budget or an ordinance proposed by initiative petition.
3 Thereupon, pending the vote to override the veto as herein provided, such ordinance, resolution or
4 action shall be deemed neither approved nor adopted. The Mayor shall, no more than twenty days
5 following the veto, provide to Council members, in writing, reasons for the Mayor's veto. If the
6 Mayor fails to provide a written veto message within the time allotted, the original action of the
7 City Council shall stand. At any regular or adjourned meeting held not less than thirty days, nor
8 more than sixty days after veto the City Council shall reconsider such ordinance, resolution or
9 action and vote on the question of overriding the veto. Five affirmative votes shall be required for
10 its adoption or approval. The Mayor shall have no right to veto the veto override of any
11 ordinance, resolution or action.

12 In the absence of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall assume the duties of the
13 Mayor. The Mayor Pro Tempore shall be appointed from members of the City Council on the
14 following ward rotational basis with each member serving for a term of six months: Ward 7,
15 Ward 6, Ward 5, Ward 4, Ward 3, Ward 2, and Ward 1 or as otherwise determined by the City
16 Council. In the event the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore are absent, the Councilmember last
17 serving as Mayor Pro Tempore shall be assigned said role. The Mayor Pro Tempore shall
18 conduct the City Council meetings and shall vote only as a member of the City Council, not as
19 Mayor Pro Tempore. In the event of a tie-vote, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall not have a tie-
20 breaking vote and City Council vote shall be recorded as a negative or "nay" vote. The Mayor
21 Pro Tempore shall not have the power to veto acts of the City Council.

22 In addition to the duties enumerated above, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall be responsible
23 for the coordination of any special or annual evaluation of the City Manager, City Attorney or the
24 City Clerk. Said responsibility may include but not be limited to the distribution, collection and
25 tabulation of any written evaluations; and the calendaring of any closed session during which time
26 the evaluations shall be conducted.

27 The Mayor Pro Tempore shall also use their best efforts to participate in the agenda-
28 setting meeting, as set forth in Article IX(D) below, preceding each City Council meeting.

1 B. DUTIES OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

2 Promptly at the hour set by law on the date of each regular meeting, the Mayor and
3 Councilmembers shall take their regular stations in the Art Pick Council Chamber and the
4 business of the City Council shall be taken up for consideration and disposition.

5 C. MOTIONS TO BE STATED BY PRESIDING OFFICER

6 When a motion is made, it shall be stated by the presiding officer or the City Clerk before
7 debate.

8 D. DECORUM

9 While the City Council is in session, the members must preserve order and decorum, and a
10 member shall not, by conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of
11 the City Council nor disturb any member while speaking, nor refuse to obey the orders of the City
12 Council, or the presiding officer, except as otherwise herein provided.

13 E. VOTES REQUIRED TO TAKE ACTION

14 Unless a higher vote is required by provisions of the City Charter, the affirmative votes of
15 at least four members of the City Council shall be required in order for the City Council to take
16 action on an item of business or the adoption of any ordinance or resolution, or for the making or
17 approving of any order for the payment of money.

18 Any ordinance declared by the City Council to be necessary as an emergency measure as
19 hereinafter defined may be introduced and adopted at one and the same meeting if passed by at
20 least five affirmative votes.

21 At any meeting after the adoption of the City's budget, the City Council may amend or
22 supplement the budget by motion adopted by the affirmative votes of at least five members so as
23 to authorize the transfer of unused balances appropriated for one purpose to another purpose or to
24 appropriate available funds not included in the budget.

25 F. VOTING DISQUALIFICATION

26 Neither the Mayor nor any Council member who is disqualified shall vote upon the matter
27 on which the member is disqualified. Any member shall openly state that they are abstaining
28 because of a disqualifying financial or other conflict of interest. The Mayor or any

1 councilmember who is disqualified due to a financial interest shall publicly identify the financial
2 interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public except that disclosure of the exact street
3 address of a residence is not required. As to any other conflict of interest, the member's
4 determination may be accompanied by an oral or written disclosure of such conflict of interest. A
5 member who is disqualified by a conflict of interest in any matter shall not remain in the
6 member's chair during the discussion and vote on such matter unless the matter has been placed
7 on the consent agenda.

8 G. PARTICIPATION ON NON-PROFIT BOARDS OF DIRECTORS AND CONFLICTS
9 OF INTEREST.

10 It shall be the policy of this Council that the Mayor and members of the City Council
11 should not serve as members of the board of directors of a non-profit corporation which is
12 receiving or will be reasonably likely in the future to seek and/or receive funding from the City of
13 Riverside so as to avoid any appearance of a conflict of interest.

14 In the event that the Mayor and/or a member of the City Council serves as a non-
15 compensated member of the board of directors of a non-profit corporation, then a contract may be
16 made between the City of Riverside and the non-profit corporation provided that:

- 17 • The public official discloses his/her participation on the non-profit corporation's
18 board of directors to the City Council at the time the City Council is considering the contract with
19 the non-profit corporation;
- 20 • The public official's interest as a member of the non-profit corporation's board of
21 directors is noted in the official minutes of the City Council meeting; and
- 22 • The public official disqualifies themselves from any vote, deliberation or influence
23 on the matter before the City Council.

24 Furthermore, if it is determined based upon a factual analysis that the Mayor or a City
25 Council member serves as a non-compensated member of the board of director of a non-profit
26 corporation, and that the non-profit supports functions of the City as one of its primary purposes,
27 then the public official is determined to have a "non-interest" and may therefore participate in the
28 deliberation and vote on the matter before it. However, the public official's interest as a member

1 of the non-profit corporation's board of directors must be noted in the official minutes of the City
2 Council meeting.

3 Further, the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk shall not serve as a member of
4 the board of directors of a non-profit corporation which is receiving or will be reasonably likely in
5 the future to seek and/or receive funding from the City of Riverside so as to avoid any appearance
6 of a conflict of interest.

7 H. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS TO AVOID IMPROPER CONSIDERATION OF
8 PENDING OR CONTEMPLATED MATTERS

9 Open Mind. The Mayor and Councilmembers will make every effort not to pledge or
10 promise to vote in any particular manner on any matter pending before it.

11 V

12 ROLE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

13 A. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT IN GENERAL

- 14 1. Mayor and Councilmembers shall treat everyone with courtesy.
- 15 2. Inappropriate behavior is derogatory and damages the perception of the City.
- 16 3. While the City Council is in session the Mayor, Councilmembers and City staff
17 shall preserve strict order and decorum. Neither the Mayor nor any Councilmember shall delay or
18 interrupt the proceedings of the City Council or interrupt any member while speaking.
- 19 4. Councilmembers should use the speaker sequencing system to indicate to the
20 presiding officer that they want to speak. The presiding officer will acknowledge them before
21 they begin speaking.
- 22 5. Any Councilmember shall have the right to express dissent from, or protest to, or
23 comment upon, any action of the City Council.
- 24 6. Once a vote is taken on an issue, Councilmembers will support the law made by
25 the City Council. If a Councilmember wants an issue to be reconsidered, he/she will make a
26 motion to reconsider as provided for in Section XII of these Rules of Procedure. When possible,
27 the City Council should attempt to reach consensus on an issue. When this is not possible, the
28 majority vote shall prevail. However, the City Council shall respect the opinion of the minority.

1 7. The Mayor and City Council shall publicly share substantive information, which
2 they may have received from sources outside the public decision-making process that is relevant
3 to a matter under consideration by the City Council.

4 8. Allow for everyone’s opinion to be heard and respected, even if they do not win
5 the vote or prevail on the issue. Strive for a win-win situation by respecting diverse opinions.

6 9. Councilmembers will allow room for dialogue. When discussing an agenda item,
7 the City Council will allow the opportunity to dialogue with each other to build consensus on an
8 item.

9 10. Any member of the City Council may move to require the presiding officer to
10 enforce the rules and an affirmative vote of a majority of Council members present shall be
11 required to do so.

12 **B. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH ONE ANOTHER**

13 1. The Mayor and City Council will value each other’s time.

14 2. All Councilmembers have the opportunity to speak and agree to disagree.

15 3. The City Council will avoid negative comments that could offend other
16 Councilmembers during public meetings, in the press, or any other time.

17 4. The City Council will practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate.

18 5. The presiding officer has an affirmative duty to maintain order. The City Council
19 will honor the role of the presiding officer in maintaining order.

20 **C. MAYOR, CITY COUNCIL AND CITY MANAGER CONDUCT WITH STAFF**

21 1. Mayor and Councilmembers should always feel free to speak directly with the City
22 Manager on matters of interest or concern to them.

23 2. The Mayor, City Council, City Manager and City Staff shall respect and adhere to
24 the City’s form of government, which is a Charter City operating under a Council-Manager form
25 of government, with the City Council acting as the legislative body of the City. The City Council
26 is the visionary policy maker and staff is responsible for implementation of City Council policies.

27 3. The City Council directs the City Manager to implement City Council policy
28 decisions through the administrative functions of the City.

1 4. The Mayor and City Council shall treat staff professionally.

2 5. When possible, the Mayor and City Council should attempt to seek answers to
3 questions on an item on the agenda, from the City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk or
4 Department/Division Head prior to the meeting.

5 6. The Mayor and Councilmembers will not get involved in personnel issues except
6 during a closed session where personnel issues may be discussed or as otherwise appropriate
7 concerning the City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk or other staff appointed by the City
8 Council. This includes hiring, firing, promoting, disciplining, and all other forms of personnel
9 matters.

10 7. If a Councilmember is unhappy about a department or an employee he/she may
11 discuss the situation with the City Manager, Assistant City Manager, or the City Attorney or City
12 Clerk as appropriate.

13 D. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH THE PUBLIC

14 1. The Mayor and City Council will make the public feel welcome.

15 2. The Mayor and City Council shall not be partial, prejudiced or disrespectful
16 toward the public.

17 3. The Mayor and City Council should not make snappy, sarcastic comments to the
18 public or to each other.

19 4. The Mayor and City Council shall treat members of the public equally.

20 5. The Mayor and City Council members shall make no promises to the public on
21 behalf of the City Council.

22 6. The Mayor and City Council shall not argue with members of the public.

23 7. The Mayor and City Council shall listen courteously and attentively to all public
24 comments before the City Council.

25 E. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH OTHER AGENCIES

26 1. The Mayor and City Council shall be clear about representing the City or personal
27 interests to members of other agencies.

28

1 2. The Mayor and City Council shall project a positive image of the City when
2 dealing with other agencies.

3 3. The Mayor and individual Councilmembers can lobby or discuss with other
4 legislators, government officials or developers issues that have been adopted by the City Council
5 or are City Council policy; they should not represent themselves as the City if it is only an
6 individual issue.

7 4. The Mayor and City Council shall show tolerance and respect for other agencies’
8 opinions and issues and agree to disagree with them when necessary.

9 F. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

10 1. The Mayor and City Council works through the board/commission chairs.

11 2. The Mayor and City Council shall treat all members of Boards and Commissions
12 with appreciation and respect.

13 3. It has been the practice of the Mayor and City Council to not participate in Board
14 and Commission meetings for the purpose of, and to avoid perception of, influencing the outcome
15 of said meetings.

16 G. COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH STANDING CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES

17 1. *Government Code* section 54952.2 defines a meeting of the legislative body of the
18 City of Riverside and provides certain limitations on the attendance of its members.

19 2. A member of the City Council, who is not a member of the standing committee,
20 may attend an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the City Council, provided
21 that they attend only as observers and do not participate in any discussion.

22 H. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL CONDUCT WITH THE MEDIA

23 1. The Mayor and City Council shall never go “off the record”, discuss information
24 pertaining to closed sessions, personnel, litigation or acquisition of property items, when dealing
25 with the media. Providing background information is acceptable.

26 ///

27 ///

28 ///

1 I. OBTAINING THE FLOOR

2 1. Any member of the City Council wishing to speak must further obtain the floor by
3 being recognized by the presiding officer. The presiding officer must recognize any
4 Councilmember who seeks the floor when appropriately entitled to do so.

5 2. With the concurrence of the presiding officer, a Councilmember holding the floor
6 may address a question to another Councilmember and that Councilmember may respond while
7 the floor is still held by the Councilmember asking the question. A Councilmember may opt not
8 to answer a question while another Councilmember has the floor.

9 VI

10 ROLE OF CITY STAFF

11 A. City staff will provide written analysis and information on all agenda items prior to the
12 meetings. Additionally, a copy of the materials, including technical reports will be available to
13 the public.

14 B. Staff will be available to answer questions of the City Council prior to and during City
15 Council meetings.

16 C. Staff will respond to questions from the public during City Council meetings when
17 requested to do so by the Mayor, City Council, or City Manager.

18 D. Staff will not argue with the public or the City Council.

19 E. During City Council meetings staff shall turn off or switch any electronic equipment such
20 as pagers and cellular telephones to a silent mode.

21 F. Councilmembers and staff who participate in meetings with outsiders should be apprised
22 of any follow-up correspondence to that party, particularly if there is some controversy; the City
23 Manager and all Councilmembers should get copied on all correspondence.

24 G. Staff will remain objective on issues. Staff should not be an advocate for issues unless so
25 directed by the City Council. Rather, they should promote or assist the efforts of City Council.

26 H. Staff will inform City Council as soon as possible of upcoming issues, particularly issues
27 that will impact the City significantly and may be coming before City Council on short notice.

28

1 I. Staff will provide each Councilmember with written notification of any meetings or
2 discussions relative to any development project in the Councilmember’s respective ward. Each
3 Councilmember may, at their option, follow up with staff regarding the details of the project and
4 any policy issues that may be coming before the City Council.

5 J. If only one or two Councilmembers feel something is controversial or a “hot” issue and it
6 may be coming before the City Council, the City Manager will inform the Mayor and the
7 Councilmembers whose ward the issue concerns.

8 K. The City Manager will advise management to become aware of and sensitive to
9 potentially political or controversial issues coming before the City Council.

10 L. City staff will implement all City Council policies as directed by the City Manager; staff
11 will not implement any actions for the City without prior approval of the City Council and City
12 Manager.

13 **VII**

14 **ROLE OF THE PUBLIC**

15 A. Members of the public attending the City Council meetings are requested to observe the
16 same rules and decorum applicable to the City Council and staff.

17 B. All speakers must approach the podium when recognized by the presiding officer.
18 Members of the public shall only speak from the podium.

19 C. Members of the public shall turn off or switch any electronic equipment such as pagers
20 and cellular telephones to a silent mode while attending a City Council meeting.

21 D. If a member of the public desires to provide written correspondence (11 copies
22 recommended) to the City Council, all such materials shall be given directly to the City Clerk
23 prior to the meeting, or if during the course of the meeting, the materials shall be given to the City
24 staff on the dais. At no time shall the public enter the well to provide the materials directly to
25 members of the City Council.

26 ///

27 ///

28 ///

1 **VIII**

2 **MEETINGS**

3 A. **CALL TO ORDER - PRESIDING OFFICER**

4 The Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence the Mayor Pro Tempore, shall take the chair at the
5 hour appointed for the meeting and shall immediately call the City Council to order. Upon the
6 arrival of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro Tempore shall immediately relinquish the chair at the
7 conclusion of the business presently before the City Council.

8 B. **ROLL CALL**

9 Before the City Council shall proceed with the business before it, the City Clerk shall
10 enter into the minutes the names of the Mayor and those Councilmembers present. The later
11 arrival of any absentee shall also be entered into the minutes.

12 C. **QUORUM CALL**

13 During the course of the meeting, should the presiding officer note a City Council quorum
14 is lacking, the presiding officer shall call this fact to the attention of the City Clerk. The presiding
15 officer shall issue a quorum call. If a quorum has not been restored within two minutes of a
16 quorum call, the Chair may declare a recess for a reasonable period of time in order to reestablish
17 a quorum or the meeting shall be deemed automatically adjourned.

18 D. **CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE**

19 Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held in the Art Pick Council Chamber, 3900
20 Main Street, Riverside, California, on the first ~~and third~~four Tuesdays of each month, taking into
21 consideration any legal holidays which may occur. There shall be no meeting ~~held on any~~
22 ~~Tuesday immediately following a City observed holiday occurring on a Monday~~on the fifth
23 Tuesday of the month. For the months of July, August and September, meetings shall occur on
24 the first and third Tuesdays of the month.

25 Regular meetings of the City Council shall commence at approximately ~~2~~1:00 p.m., and
26 shall include oral communication from the public followed by any closed sessions, workshops,
27 public hearings, or other business, as necessary. Public hearings shall commence at
28 approximately 3:00 p.m. Evening sessions shall begin at approximately 6:15 p.m. and shall

1 include ~~An~~ additional period for oral communications from the public ~~shall be held~~ at 7:00 p.m.
2 One meeting each month shall be reserved for City Council workshops. City Council meetings
3 may be canceled for lack of agenda items.

4 The appointed hours noted herein are set forth for the convenience of the City Council and
5 are subject to change.

6 E. ADJOURNED MEETINGS

7 The City Council may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special
8 meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment as permitted by law and in
9 compliance with Chapter 4.05 of the Riverside Municipal Code.

10 F. SPECIAL MEETINGS

11 The Mayor or a majority of the City Council may call a special meeting by providing
12 notice five (5) days in advance of the meeting to the Mayor, all members of the City Council, to
13 all media outlets, and to persons having requested notification pursuant to State law.

14 G. CLOSED SESSIONS

15 The City Clerk or his/her designee shall attend each closed session of the City Council and
16 keep and enter in a minute book a record of topics discussed and decisions made at the meeting.
17 In the event of a closed session concerning personnel matters conducted in conformance with
18 *California Government Code* section 54957, the Mayor Pro Tempore or his/her designee shall
19 enter in a minute book a record of the topics discussed and decisions made at the meeting. The
20 minute book is not a public record subject to inspection pursuant to the California Public Records
21 Act (*California Government Code* section 6250 *et seq.*), and shall be kept confidential. The
22 minute book shall be available only to members of the legislative body or, if a violation of
23 *California Government Code* sections 54950 through 54962 is alleged to have occurred at a
24 closed session, to a court of general jurisdiction wherein the local agency lies.

25 All proper matters discussed during closed sessions shall be private and confidential, and
26 the disclosure by any person of the topics or details of such matters is expressly prohibited. If a
27 Councilmember feels it is necessary, then preliminary notes may be taken which should not be
28

1 kept as the Councilmembers permanent records. All closed session information, verbal or
2 written, is confidential and private.

3 H. EMERGENCY MEETINGS.

4 In the case of an emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt action is
5 necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the City Council may
6 hold an emergency meeting without complying with either the 24-hour notice requirement or the
7 24-hour posting requirement of *Section 54956* or both of the notice and posting requirement.

8 Each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station that has
9 requested notice of special meetings pursuant to *Section 54956* shall be notified by the presiding
10 officer of the legislative body, or designee thereof, one hour prior to the emergency meeting, or,
11 in the case of a dire emergency, at or near the time that the presiding officer or designee notifies
12 the members of the City Council of the emergency meeting. This notice shall be given by
13 telephone and all telephone numbers provided in the most recent request of a newspaper or station
14 for notification of special meetings shall be exhausted. In the event that telephone services are
15 not functioning, the notice requirements of this section shall be deemed waived, and the
16 legislative body, or designee of the legislative body, shall notify those newspapers, radio stations,
17 or television stations of the fact of the holding of the emergency meeting, the purpose of the
18 meeting, and any action taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as possible.

19 During an emergency meeting, the City Council may meet in closed session pursuant to
20 *Section 54957* if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the members of the City Council present, or, if
21 less than two-thirds of the members are present, by an unanimous vote of the members present.

22 All special meeting requirements, as prescribed in *Section 54956* shall be applicable to an
23 emergency meeting, with the exception of the 24-hour notice requirement.

24 The minutes of an emergency meeting, a list of persons who the presiding officer of the
25 City Council, or designee of the City Council, notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the roll
26 call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for a minimum of ten days in a
27 public place as soon after the meeting as possible.

28

1 IX
2 AGENDA

3 A. DECLARATION OF POLICY

4 No ordinance, resolution, or item of business shall be introduced or acted upon before the
5 City Council at its meeting without it having been published on the agenda of the meeting and
6 posted in accordance with Riverside Municipal Code Title 4 and *California Government Code*
7 section 54954.2(a) as the same now exist or hereafter amended. Exceptions to this rule are
8 limited to those provided by State law and matters of business remaining uncompleted from a
9 regular meeting.

10 B. DEFINITIONS

11 For purposes of this section, the terms listed herein shall be defined as follows:

12 1. "Agenda Item" means an item placed on the agenda irrespective of location (save
13 and except for matters raised under Oral Communications) to be transacted or discussed by the
14 City Council. For purposes of this Section, any quasi-judicial appeals shall be considered action
15 items in accordance with *California Government Code* section 54952.6 as the same now exists or
16 hereafter may be amended.

17 Each agenda item shall contain a brief general description of each item of business to be
18 transacted or discussed at the meeting in accordance with *California Government Code* section
19 54954.2 as the same now exists or hereafter may be amended, whether the matter is to be
20 presented in Closed Session, on the Consent Calendar, the Discussion Calendar, the Public
21 Hearing Calendar, or such other time as may be scheduled.

22 Each agenda item shall be supported by all relevant documentation, which may include
23 but not be limited to the following as applicable:

- 24 a. The need therefore and the department or departments involved or affected
25 thereby;
- 26 b. Recommendation of the City Manager, if applicable;
- 27 c. Comments of the City Attorney, if the item involves legal issues;
- 28 d. Past City Council actions or practices, if any, relating to such matter;

- 1 e. Past legislative history or hearings, if any;
- 2 f. Financial benefits or costs which would accrue to the City as a result of the
- 3 recommended action;
- 4 g. For awards of contracts, the contracts shall be prepared and presented;
- 5 h. If funds are requested, the budgetary source of funds;
- 6 i. Person or persons to contact for further information;
- 7 j. Estimated balances shall be included for appropriations from General Fund
- 8 Contingency Reserve and supplemental appropriations from fund balance.

9 2. "Agenda" means the compilation of the descriptive titles of agenda items

10 submitted to the City Clerk, arranged in the sequence established in Section IX.E. hereof.

11 3. "Packet" means the Agenda and all supporting documentation.

12 4. "Emergency Situation" means both of the following:

13 a. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling

14 activity, or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as determined by a

15 majority of the members of the City Council.

16 b. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass

17 destruction, terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and

18 significant that requiring a legislative body to provide one-hour notice before holding an

19 emergency meeting may endanger the public health, safety, or both, as determined by a majority

20 of the members of the City Council.

21 5. "Items Carried Over" means items uncompleted from a prior agenda of a City

22 Council meeting.

23 C. PROCEDURE FOR BRINGING MATTERS BEFORE CITY COUNCIL

24 1. Persons Who May Place Matters On The Agenda

25 Except for matters pending before any committee, commission or other advisory body of

26 the City or the City Council, matters pertinent to and within the jurisdiction of the City may be

27 placed on the agenda by the Mayor, any Councilmember, the City Manager, City Attorney or City

28 Clerk.

1 2. Scheduling Public Hearings Mandated By State, Federal or Local Statute.

2 The City Clerk may schedule a public hearing at any available time and date in those cases
3 where State, Federal or local statute mandates the City Council hold a public hearing.

4 3. Submission of Agenda Items.

5 Except for Items Carried Over, as a condition to placing an item on the Council’s agenda,
6 by the Mayor, any Councilmember, the City Manager, the City Attorney or the City Clerk, a City
7 Council report should be prepared and submitted to the City Clerk not later than 12:00 p.m. of the
8 fifteenth (15th) day prior to each regular City Council meeting at which the item shall be heard.

9 4. Preparation of the Packet.

10 Not later than 5:00 p.m. twelve (12) days prior to each regular City Council meeting, the
11 City Clerk shall prepare the packet. No item shall be considered by the City Council if not
12 included in the packet, except as provided in section 4.05.050 of the Riverside Municipal Code.

13 5. Posting of Agenda.

14 The City Clerk shall post the agenda of each City Council Regular or Adjourned Regular
15 Meeting at least twelve (12) days in advance of said meeting in a location that is freely accessible
16 to members of the public. The City Clerk shall maintain an affidavit indicating the location, date
17 and time of posting each agenda.

18 6. Distribution of the Packet.

19 Not later than 6:30 p.m. twelve (12) days prior to each regular City Council meeting, the
20 City Clerk shall distribute the packet to the Mayor, each member of the City Council, the City
21 Manager and the City Attorney. Twelve (12) days prior to each regular City Council meeting,
22 the City Clerk shall distribute the packet to the designated department directors, and such other
23 persons or institutions as the City Clerk shall deem necessary or appropriate. Paper or electronic
24 copies of the packet shall be made for the news media and such other organizations, agencies,
25 institutions or persons as may wish to subscribe to receipt thereof, and the City Clerk will make
26 the packet available electronically on the City’s webpage.

27 ///
28 ///
29 ///
30 ///
31 ///
32 ///
33 ///
34 ///
35 ///
36 ///
37 ///
38 ///
39 ///
40 ///
41 ///
42 ///
43 ///
44 ///
45 ///
46 ///
47 ///
48 ///
49 ///
50 ///
51 ///
52 ///
53 ///
54 ///
55 ///
56 ///
57 ///
58 ///
59 ///
60 ///
61 ///
62 ///
63 ///
64 ///
65 ///
66 ///
67 ///
68 ///
69 ///
70 ///
71 ///
72 ///
73 ///
74 ///
75 ///
76 ///
77 ///
78 ///
79 ///
80 ///
81 ///
82 ///
83 ///
84 ///
85 ///
86 ///
87 ///
88 ///
89 ///
90 ///
91 ///
92 ///
93 ///
94 ///
95 ///
96 ///
97 ///
98 ///
99 ///
100 ///
101 ///
102 ///
103 ///
104 ///
105 ///
106 ///
107 ///
108 ///
109 ///
110 ///
111 ///
112 ///
113 ///
114 ///
115 ///
116 ///
117 ///
118 ///
119 ///
120 ///
121 ///
122 ///
123 ///
124 ///
125 ///
126 ///
127 ///
128 ///
129 ///
130 ///
131 ///
132 ///
133 ///
134 ///
135 ///
136 ///
137 ///
138 ///
139 ///
140 ///
141 ///
142 ///
143 ///
144 ///
145 ///
146 ///
147 ///
148 ///
149 ///
150 ///
151 ///
152 ///
153 ///
154 ///
155 ///
156 ///
157 ///
158 ///
159 ///
160 ///
161 ///
162 ///
163 ///
164 ///
165 ///
166 ///
167 ///
168 ///
169 ///
170 ///
171 ///
172 ///
173 ///
174 ///
175 ///
176 ///
177 ///
178 ///
179 ///
180 ///
181 ///
182 ///
183 ///
184 ///
185 ///
186 ///
187 ///
188 ///
189 ///
190 ///
191 ///
192 ///
193 ///
194 ///
195 ///
196 ///
197 ///
198 ///
199 ///
200 ///
201 ///
202 ///
203 ///
204 ///
205 ///
206 ///
207 ///
208 ///
209 ///
210 ///
211 ///
212 ///
213 ///
214 ///
215 ///
216 ///
217 ///
218 ///
219 ///
220 ///
221 ///
222 ///
223 ///
224 ///
225 ///
226 ///
227 ///
228 ///
229 ///
230 ///
231 ///
232 ///
233 ///
234 ///
235 ///
236 ///
237 ///
238 ///
239 ///
240 ///
241 ///
242 ///
243 ///
244 ///
245 ///
246 ///
247 ///
248 ///
249 ///
250 ///
251 ///
252 ///
253 ///
254 ///
255 ///
256 ///
257 ///
258 ///
259 ///
260 ///
261 ///
262 ///
263 ///
264 ///
265 ///
266 ///
267 ///
268 ///
269 ///
270 ///
271 ///
272 ///
273 ///
274 ///
275 ///
276 ///
277 ///
278 ///
279 ///
280 ///
281 ///
282 ///
283 ///
284 ///
285 ///
286 ///
287 ///
288 ///
289 ///
290 ///
291 ///
292 ///
293 ///
294 ///
295 ///
296 ///
297 ///
298 ///
299 ///
300 ///
301 ///
302 ///
303 ///
304 ///
305 ///
306 ///
307 ///
308 ///
309 ///
310 ///
311 ///
312 ///
313 ///
314 ///
315 ///
316 ///
317 ///
318 ///
319 ///
320 ///
321 ///
322 ///
323 ///
324 ///
325 ///
326 ///
327 ///
328 ///
329 ///
330 ///
331 ///
332 ///
333 ///
334 ///
335 ///
336 ///
337 ///
338 ///
339 ///
340 ///
341 ///
342 ///
343 ///
344 ///
345 ///
346 ///
347 ///
348 ///
349 ///
350 ///
351 ///
352 ///
353 ///
354 ///
355 ///
356 ///
357 ///
358 ///
359 ///
360 ///
361 ///
362 ///
363 ///
364 ///
365 ///
366 ///
367 ///
368 ///
369 ///
370 ///
371 ///
372 ///
373 ///
374 ///
375 ///
376 ///
377 ///
378 ///
379 ///
380 ///
381 ///
382 ///
383 ///
384 ///
385 ///
386 ///
387 ///
388 ///
389 ///
390 ///
391 ///
392 ///
393 ///
394 ///
395 ///
396 ///
397 ///
398 ///
399 ///
400 ///
401 ///
402 ///
403 ///
404 ///
405 ///
406 ///
407 ///
408 ///
409 ///
410 ///
411 ///
412 ///
413 ///
414 ///
415 ///
416 ///
417 ///
418 ///
419 ///
420 ///
421 ///
422 ///
423 ///
424 ///
425 ///
426 ///
427 ///
428 ///
429 ///
430 ///
431 ///
432 ///
433 ///
434 ///
435 ///
436 ///
437 ///
438 ///
439 ///
440 ///
441 ///
442 ///
443 ///
444 ///
445 ///
446 ///
447 ///
448 ///
449 ///
450 ///
451 ///
452 ///
453 ///
454 ///
455 ///
456 ///
457 ///
458 ///
459 ///
460 ///
461 ///
462 ///
463 ///
464 ///
465 ///
466 ///
467 ///
468 ///
469 ///
470 ///
471 ///
472 ///
473 ///
474 ///
475 ///
476 ///
477 ///
478 ///
479 ///
480 ///
481 ///
482 ///
483 ///
484 ///
485 ///
486 ///
487 ///
488 ///
489 ///
490 ///
491 ///
492 ///
493 ///
494 ///
495 ///
496 ///
497 ///
498 ///
499 ///
500 ///
501 ///
502 ///
503 ///
504 ///
505 ///
506 ///
507 ///
508 ///
509 ///
510 ///
511 ///
512 ///
513 ///
514 ///
515 ///
516 ///
517 ///
518 ///
519 ///
520 ///
521 ///
522 ///
523 ///
524 ///
525 ///
526 ///
527 ///
528 ///
529 ///
530 ///
531 ///
532 ///
533 ///
534 ///
535 ///
536 ///
537 ///
538 ///
539 ///
540 ///
541 ///
542 ///
543 ///
544 ///
545 ///
546 ///
547 ///
548 ///
549 ///
550 ///
551 ///
552 ///
553 ///
554 ///
555 ///
556 ///
557 ///
558 ///
559 ///
560 ///
561 ///
562 ///
563 ///
564 ///
565 ///
566 ///
567 ///
568 ///
569 ///
570 ///
571 ///
572 ///
573 ///
574 ///
575 ///
576 ///
577 ///
578 ///
579 ///
580 ///
581 ///
582 ///
583 ///
584 ///
585 ///
586 ///
587 ///
588 ///
589 ///
590 ///
591 ///
592 ///
593 ///
594 ///
595 ///
596 ///
597 ///
598 ///
599 ///
600 ///
601 ///
602 ///
603 ///
604 ///
605 ///
606 ///
607 ///
608 ///
609 ///
610 ///
611 ///
612 ///
613 ///
614 ///
615 ///
616 ///
617 ///
618 ///
619 ///
620 ///
621 ///
622 ///
623 ///
624 ///
625 ///
626 ///
627 ///
628 ///
629 ///
630 ///
631 ///
632 ///
633 ///
634 ///
635 ///
636 ///
637 ///
638 ///
639 ///
640 ///
641 ///
642 ///
643 ///
644 ///
645 ///
646 ///
647 ///
648 ///
649 ///
650 ///
651 ///
652 ///
653 ///
654 ///
655 ///
656 ///
657 ///
658 ///
659 ///
660 ///
661 ///
662 ///
663 ///
664 ///
665 ///
666 ///
667 ///
668 ///
669 ///
670 ///
671 ///
672 ///
673 ///
674 ///
675 ///
676 ///
677 ///
678 ///
679 ///
680 ///
681 ///
682 ///
683 ///
684 ///
685 ///
686 ///
687 ///
688 ///
689 ///
690 ///
691 ///
692 ///
693 ///
694 ///
695 ///
696 ///
697 ///
698 ///
699 ///
700 ///
701 ///
702 ///
703 ///
704 ///
705 ///
706 ///
707 ///
708 ///
709 ///
710 ///
711 ///
712 ///
713 ///
714 ///
715 ///
716 ///
717 ///
718 ///
719 ///
720 ///
721 ///
722 ///
723 ///
724 ///
725 ///
726 ///
727 ///
728 ///
729 ///
730 ///
731 ///
732 ///
733 ///
734 ///
735 ///
736 ///
737 ///
738 ///
739 ///
740 ///
741 ///
742 ///
743 ///
744 ///
745 ///
746 ///
747 ///
748 ///
749 ///
750 ///
751 ///
752 ///
753 ///
754 ///
755 ///
756 ///
757 ///
758 ///
759 ///
760 ///
761 ///
762 ///
763 ///
764 ///
765 ///
766 ///
767 ///
768 ///
769 ///
770 ///
771 ///
772 ///
773 ///
774 ///
775 ///
776 ///
777 ///
778 ///
779 ///
780 ///
781 ///
782 ///
783 ///
784 ///
785 ///
786 ///
787 ///
788 ///
789 ///
790 ///
791 ///
792 ///
793 ///
794 ///
795 ///
796 ///
797 ///
798 ///
799 ///
800 ///
801 ///
802 ///
803 ///
804 ///
805 ///
806 ///
807 ///
808 ///
809 ///
810 ///
811 ///
812 ///
813 ///
814 ///
815 ///
816 ///
817 ///
818 ///
819 ///
820 ///
821 ///
822 ///
823 ///
824 ///
825 ///
826 ///
827 ///
828 ///
829 ///
830 ///
831 ///
832 ///
833 ///
834 ///
835 ///
836 ///
837 ///
838 ///
839 ///
840 ///
841 ///
842 ///
843 ///
844 ///
845 ///
846 ///
847 ///
848 ///
849 ///
850 ///
851 ///
852 ///
853 ///
854 ///
855 ///
856 ///
857 ///
858 ///
859 ///
860 ///
861 ///
862 ///
863 ///
864 ///
865 ///
866 ///
867 ///
868 ///
869 ///
870 ///
871 ///
872 ///
873 ///
874 ///
875 ///
876 ///
877 ///
878 ///
879 ///
880 ///
881 ///
882 ///
883 ///
884 ///
885 ///
886 ///
887 ///
888 ///
889 ///
890 ///
891 ///
892 ///
893 ///
894 ///
895 ///
896 ///
897 ///
898 ///
899 ///
900 ///
901 ///
902 ///
903 ///
904 ///
905 ///
906 ///
907 ///
908 ///
909 ///
910 ///
911 ///
912 ///
913 ///
914 ///
915 ///
916 ///
917 ///
918 ///
919 ///
920 ///
921 ///
922 ///
923 ///
924 ///
925 ///
926 ///
927 ///
928 ///
929 ///
930 ///
931 ///
932 ///
933 ///
934 ///
935 ///
936 ///
937 ///
938 ///
939 ///
940 ///
941 ///
942 ///
943 ///
944 ///
945 ///
946 ///
947 ///
948 ///
949 ///
950 ///
951 ///
952 ///
953 ///
954 ///
955 ///
956 ///
957 ///
958 ///
959 ///
960 ///
961 ///
962 ///
963 ///
964 ///
965 ///
966 ///
967 ///
968 ///
969 ///
970 ///
971 ///
972 ///
973 ///
974 ///
975 ///
976 ///
977 ///
978 ///
979 ///
980 ///
981 ///
982 ///
983 ///
984 ///
985 ///
986 ///
987 ///
988 ///
989 ///
990 ///
991 ///
992 ///
993 ///
994 ///
995 ///
996 ///
997 ///
998 ///
999 ///
1000 ///
1001 ///
1002 ///
1003 ///
1004 ///
1005 ///
1006 ///
1007 ///
1008 ///
1009 ///
1010 ///
1011 ///
1012 ///
1013 ///
1014 ///
1015 ///
1016 ///
1017 ///
1018 ///
1019 ///
1020 ///
1021 ///
1022 ///
1023 ///
1024 ///
1025 ///
1026 ///
1027 ///
1028 ///
1029 ///
1030 ///
1031 ///
1032 ///
1033 ///
1034 ///
1035 ///
1036 ///
1037 ///
1038 ///
1039 ///
1040 ///
1041 ///
1042 ///
1043 ///
1044 ///
1045 ///
1046 ///
1047 ///
1048 ///
1049 ///
1050 ///
1051 ///
1052 ///
1053 ///
1054 ///
1055 ///
1056 ///
1057 ///
1058 ///
1059 ///
1060 ///
1061 ///
1062 ///
1063 ///
1064 ///
1065 ///
1066 ///
1067 ///
1068 ///
1069 ///
1070 ///
1071 ///
1072 ///
1073 ///
1074 ///
1075 ///
1076 ///
1077 ///
1078 ///
1079 ///
1080 ///
1081 ///
1082 ///
1083 ///
1084 ///
1085 ///
1086 ///
1087 ///
1088 ///
1089 ///
1090 ///
1091 ///
1092 ///
1093 ///
1094 ///
1095 ///
1096 ///
1097 ///
1098 ///
1099 ///
1100 ///
1101 ///
1102 ///
1103 ///
1104 ///
1105 ///
1106 ///
1107 ///
1108 ///
1109 ///
1110 ///
1111 ///
1112 ///
1113 ///
1114 ///
1115 ///
1116 ///
1117 ///
1118 ///
1119 ///
1120 ///
1121 ///
1122 ///
1123 ///
1124 ///
1125 ///
1126 ///
1127 ///
1128 ///
1129 ///
1130 ///
1131 ///
1132 ///
1133 ///
1134 ///
1135 ///
1136 ///
1137 ///
1138 ///
1139 ///
1140 ///
1141 ///
1142 ///
1143 ///
1144 ///
1145 ///
1146 ///
1147 ///
1148 ///
1149 ///
1150 ///
1151 ///
1152 ///
1153 ///
1154 ///
1155 ///
1156 ///
1157 ///
1158 ///
1159 ///
1160 ///
1161

1 7. Failure to Meet Deadlines.

2 a. The City Clerk shall not, without the consent of the City Manager or City
3 Attorney, accept any agenda item or revised agenda item after the deadlines established hereby.

4 b. Supplemental Agenda And Related Materials Requirements For Regular Meetings
5 Of The City Council and City Council Standing Committees. Notwithstanding the notice
6 provisions of Section 4.05.050(A) of the Riverside Municipal Code, the City Council and City
7 Council Standing Committees, may amend or supplement a posted agenda or agenda-related
8 materials no later than 72 hours before a regular meeting and only for the following reasons or
9 under the following conditions:

10 (i) to add an item due to an emergency or urgency, provided the local body
11 makes the same findings as required by Section 4.05.050(D) of the Riverside Municipal Code
12 before taking action;

13 (ii) to delete or withdraw any item from a posted agenda however, nothing
14 herein shall limit the ability of a local body to delete or withdraw an item during the meeting;

15 (iii) to provide additional information to supplement the agenda-related material
16 previously published with the agenda provided that the additional information was not known to
17 staff or considered to be relevant at the time the agenda-related materials were filed. Examples of
18 supplemental material permitted by this Section are reports responding to questions or requests
19 raised by members of a local body after posting and filing of the twelve-day agenda and materials,
20 and analyses or opinions of the item by the Office of the City Attorney, any member of the City
21 Council, or the Mayor;

22 (iv) to correct errors or omissions, or to change a stated financial amount, or to
23 clarify or conform the agenda title to accurately reflect the nature of the action to be taken on the
24 agenda time;

25 (v) to continue an agenda item to a future regular meeting of the local body
26 provided that members of the public are given an opportunity to address the local body on the
27 limited question whether to continue the item to a future meeting.

28 ///

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

c. Excuse Of Sunshine Notice Requirements. If an item appears on an agenda but the local body fails to meet any of the additional notice requirements under this Section, the local body may take action only if:

(i) The minimum notice requirements of the Riverside City Charter and the Brown Act have been met; and,

(ii) The local body, by a two-thirds vote of those members present, adopts a motion determining that, upon consideration of the facts and circumstances, it was not reasonably possible to meet the additional notice requirements under this Section and any one of the following exists:

a. the need to take immediate action on the item is required to avoid a substantial impact that would occur if the action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting; or,

b. there is a need to take immediate action which relates to federal, state, county or other governmental agency legislation or action or the local body's eligibility for any grant or gift; or,

c. the item relates to a purely ceremonial or commendatory action.

(iii) Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection, if the Mayor or a Council Member, with the concurrence of another Council Member, believe an item is urgent, and the failure to meet any additional notice requirements was due to:

a. the need to take immediate action, which came to the attention of the local body after the agenda was posted, or;

b. a software or hardware impairment as defined by Section 4.05.010(H) of the Riverside Municipal Code and such additional notice requirements are satisfied no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the date of the meeting; or,

(iv) The item is a closed session item relating to ongoing, proposed or threatened litigation.

1 d. Action On Items Not Appearing On The Agenda. Notwithstanding subsection
2 (C) of this Section, a local body may take action on items not appearing on a posted agenda only
3 if:

4 (i) The Matter Is An Emergency. Upon a determination by a majority vote of the
5 local body that a work stoppage, crippling disaster or other activity exists which severely impairs
6 public health, safety or both.

7 D. AGENDA-SETTING MEETING

8 1. The City Council agenda-setting meeting normally takes place on Wednesdays,
9 and sets the following two City Council agendas, but can be rescheduled, if necessary.

10 2. The members include the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City Manager, City Attorney,
11 City Clerk, and Assistant City Managers. In the event that any of these representatives cannot
12 attend the meeting, they may send a representative in their place.

13 3. The City Clerk, as the City official who manages and publishes the agenda, shall
14 serve as the chairperson.

15 4. The role of the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem, in addition to collaborating as team
16 members with executive management to set the agenda, is to track City Councilmembers' referred
17 items and ensure they are placed on the agenda. If an item is not addressed in the timeframe
18 noted, the Mayor Pro Tem will provide written notification to the City Councilmember(s) who
19 made the referral. The City Clerk's Master Meeting Calendar will be used as the tracking tool.

20 5. When a City Councilmember refers an item to be placed on the agenda, a
21 timeframe must be included. It will include the Councilmember's name, and the specific type of
22 item requested (action vs. discussion). City Council items should always be considered a priority
23 for scheduling.

24 6. Any City Councilmember may attend at the invitation of the Mayor Pro Tem
25 (provided it does not violate quorum rules).

26 ///

27 ///

28 ///

1 E. CONSENT CALENDAR

2 There shall be a consent calendar on all regular meeting agendas on which shall be
3 included those matters which the Mayor, Councilmembers, and City Manager deem to be routine
4 in nature and not likely to be subject to debate or inquiry.

5 All items for presentation on the consent calendar shall conform to the format, guidelines
6 and deadlines set out in Section B, above. On any matter not requiring immediate action,
7 Councilmembers are encouraged to utilize a Motion to Postpone to a Time/Date Certain, as
8 opposed to a Motion to Table the matter, in order to have substantive issues addressed further.

9 It is the policy of the City Council that Councilmembers wishing to ask questions
10 concerning consent calendar items should ask questions of the City Manager or staff person who
11 submitted the report prior to the City Council meeting so that the need for discussion of consent
12 calendar items can be minimized.

13 F. AGENDA SEQUENCE AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

- 14 1. The City Council agenda is to be arranged in the following order and sections:
- 15 a. Workshops or Discussion Calendar.
 - 16 b. Joint session of the City Council and all other related agencies meeting to
17 receive oral communications from the public regarding closed session agenda items, or matters
18 within the jurisdiction of any such governing bodies.
 - 19 c. Legislative report.
 - 20 d. Closed Sessions.
 - 21 e. Public Hearings/Land Use Appeals.
 - 22 f. Brief reports on conferences, seminars and regional events; Ward updates;
23 Council comments; and announcements of upcoming events shall commence at 6:15 p.m.
 - 24 g. Ceremonial Matters.
 - 25 h. Oral communications from the audience regarding consent calendar items
26 or matters within the jurisdiction of the City. Oral Communications shall commence at
27 approximately 7:00 p.m., and may be moved or continued to later in the Council meeting at the
28 discretion of the presiding officer, with the concurrence of the City Council.

1 i. Consent Calendar.

2 Removal of items from the Consent Calendar, shall be followed by one motion for action
3 on uncontested Consent Calendar Items. Thereafter, removed consent items will be discussed
4 immediately after the Discussion Calendar.

5 j. Discussion Calendar.

6 k. Pulled consent calendar items, if any.

7 l. Mayor/Councilmember Communications.

8 m. Adjournment.

9 X

10 **CONDUCT OF MEETING**

11 A. **ORDER OF DISCUSSION**

12 The order of discussion after introduction of an item by the presiding officer will be as
13 follows:

14 1. Generally

15 a. Staff comments, information and reports, followed by questions from the
16 Mayor and Councilmembers.

17 b. Public comments and information followed by questions from the Mayor
18 and Councilmembers.

19 c. City Council discussion, motion and action.

20 2. Public Hearings

21 a. Staff comments, information and reports, followed by questions from the
22 Mayor and Councilmembers.

23 b. Public comments and information followed by questions from the Mayor
24 and Councilmembers.

25 c. Closure of public hearing.

26 d. Mayor and Council discussion, motion and action.

27 ///

28 ///

1 3. Appeals/Quasi-Judicial Hearings.

2 a. Staff comments, information and reports followed by questions from the
3 Mayor and Councilmembers.

4 b. Appellant/proponent comments, information and reports followed by
5 questions from the Mayor and Councilmembers.

6 c. Public comments, information and reports from others wishing to speak on
7 the item followed by questions from the Mayor and Councilmembers.

8 d. Closing statements by appellant/proponent limited to addressing comments
9 made in opposition.

10 e. Closure of public testimony.

11 f. Mayor and City Council discussion, motion and action.

12 Once the agenda item is placed before the City Council for discussion, motion and action,
13 no staff member nor member of the public shall be allowed to address the City Council without
14 the consent of the City Council.

15 B. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS CALLED UP FOR DISCUSSION

16 The Mayor, any Councilmember, or the City Manager may request that any matter be
17 removed from the Consent Calendar. If a matter placed on a Consent Calendar at a regular
18 business meeting is removed, it will be discussed immediately after adoption of the Discussion
19 Calendar. All matters remaining on the Consent Calendar and which have not been removed
20 shall be approved by a single action, such single action to have the legal effect of individual
21 action on each matter. The presiding officer or City Clerk shall read into the record each item on
22 the Consent Calendar which has been removed.

23 C. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE.

24 A portion of each agenda of a regular meeting of the City Council shall provide an
25 opportunity to members of the public to address the City Council on any issue concerning City
26 business, including closed session, consent calendar items, or item of interest that is within the
27 subject matter jurisdiction of the City (“Oral Communications”).

28 ///

1 The Mayor and members of the City Council may:

- 2 1. Briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by members of the public.
- 3 2. Ask questions for clarification.
- 4 3. Provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information.
- 5 4. Request staff to report back to the City Council at a subsequent meeting on any
- 6 matter.
- 7 5. Take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

8 The City Council retains the right, by majority vote, to alter the time allotted for public
9 remarks. Each person desiring to address the City Council during Oral Communications, City
10 Council Discussion Items, Workshops, or Public Hearings shall fill out and file a form provided
11 by the City Clerk. Requests to be heard may be submitted to the City Clerk any time prior to the
12 conclusion of public comment on the agenda item. Each person speaking shall limit his/her
13 remarks to three (3) minutes. For each and every public speaker, the presiding officer shall be
14 required to utilize the timing system which provides them with notice of their remaining time to
15 complete their presentations.

16 D. PUBLIC HEARINGS

17 The City Council or City Clerk shall set the time and place for each public hearing. In
18 the conduct of the public hearing, the presiding officer will direct those making presentations to
19 avoid repetition in order to permit maximum information to be provided the City Council
20 within the time allotted to the hearing.

21 E. PUBLIC DISCUSSION

22 The City Council may, from time to time, schedule a matter for a public meeting. At
23 the scheduled time for public discussion, the City Council may state the amount of time to be
24 allotted for testimony from the public.

25 F. TIME LIMITATION FOR PUBLIC TESTIMONY AT PUBLIC HEARINGS AND
26 PUBLIC DISCUSSION

27 The City Council may limit the total amount of time of testimony on particular issues and
28 for each individual speaker. Presentations for other than quasi-judicial hearings, are to be limited

1 to no more than one 3-minute presentation. More or less time may be authorized by a majority of
2 the City Council. For quasi-judicial hearings, presentations are to be limited as follows: an
3 appellant or applicant may be allowed one ten minute presentation and an additional five (5)
4 minutes for surrebuttal. A designated representative of an organization in opposition thereof may
5 be allowed a ten (10) minute presentation.

6 The City Council reserves the right to determine the total amount of time for testimony on
7 any particular hearing matter and/or for each individual speaker.

8 For each and every public speaker, the presiding officer shall be required to utilize the
9 timing system which provides them with notice of their remaining time to complete their
10 presentations. A green light on the timing system will be activated at the start of a presentation; a
11 yellow light will be activated as a warning that one minute remains; when the red light is
12 activated, the speaker shall cease speaking. In the further interest of time, speakers will be asked
13 to limit their comments to new materials and not repeat what a prior speaker said. Organized
14 groups may choose a single spokesperson who may speak for the group. Speakers may not
15 concede any part of their allotted time to another speaker.

16 XI

17 FACILITIES

18 A. COUNCIL CHAMBER CAPACITY

19 Council Chamber attendance shall be limited to the posted seating capacity thereof.
20 Entrance to the Council Chamber will be appropriately regulated by the City Manager on
21 occasions when the Council Chamber capacity is likely to be exceeded. While the City Council is
22 in session, members of the public shall not remain standing in the seating area or aisles of the
23 Council Chamber except to address the City Council, and sitting on the floor shall not be
24 permitted.

25 B. ALTERNATE FACILITIES FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

26 If the City Manager has reason to anticipate that the attendance for a meeting will be
27 substantially greater than the capacity of the City Council Chamber and insufficient time exists to
28 secure the approval of the City Council to hold the meeting at an alternate facility, the City

1 Manager, or his or her designee, shall make arrangements for the use of a suitable alternate
2 facility to which such meeting may be moved.

3 Furthermore, if, because of fire, flood, earthquake or other emergency, it would be unsafe
4 to meet in the customary location, the meetings may be held for the duration of the emergency at
5 some other place specified by the City Manager or his or her designee. The change of meeting
6 site shall be announced, by the most rapid means of communication available at the time, in a
7 notice to media organizations who have requested written notice of meetings.

8 XII

9 PROCEDURAL MATTERS

10 A. PERSONS AUTHORIZED TO SIT AT TABLES

11 No person, except officials, officers, employees and agents of the City shall be permitted
12 to sit at the tables in front of the City Council without the consent of the City Council.

13 B. DECORUM

14 It is the policy of the City Council that the right to express one's views at a City Council
15 meeting is fundamental to a free society; however, it is not absolute and is subject to valid
16 regulations. The public has a right to address the City Council at any meeting on any subject that
17 is within the City Council's subject matter jurisdiction and further, the public has the right to
18 express its criticism of the policies, procedures, programs or services of the City or its acts or
19 omissions. We must balance the right of the public to address the City Council with the need to
20 ensure that public comment does not hinder the smooth and efficient legislative function of the
21 City Council.

22 No member of the public shall approach the speaker's podium while the City Council is in
23 session, unless specifically requested to do so by the presiding officer. Unruly conduct, such as
24 undue noise, hissing, profanity, insult or physical disturbance which disrupts, disturbs or
25 otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the Council meeting shall not be permitted. Any person
26 making personal, impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks to any member of the Council, staff
27 or general public which disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of any
28 Council meeting shall, at the discretion of the presiding officer or a majority of the Council, be

1 barred from further audience before the City Council at said meeting, unless permission to
2 continue be granted by a majority vote of the Council.

3 C. ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM

4 Any law enforcement or security officers on duty or whose services are commanded by
5 the presiding officer shall be Sergeant-at-Arms of the City Council meetings. The Sergeant-at-
6 Arms shall carry out all orders and instructions given by the presiding officer for the purpose of
7 maintaining order and decorum at the City Council's meetings. Upon instructions of the presiding
8 officer, it shall be the duty of the Sergeant-of-Arms, or any of them present, to place any person
9 who violates the order and decorum of the meeting under arrest, and cause the person to be
10 prosecuted under the provisions of applicable law, the complaint to be signed by the presiding
11 officer.

12 D. PRECEDENCE OF MOTIONS

13 When a question is before the City Council, no motion shall be entertained except:

14 1. Motion To Adjourn.

15 A motion to adjourn requires a second and is not debatable except to set the date and time
16 to which the meeting is adjourned to consider the unfinished business. The purpose of a motion
17 to adjourn is to terminate the meeting forthwith, notwithstanding that the business on the agenda
18 has not been completed, and notwithstanding a time fixed for adjournment has not yet arrived. A
19 motion to adjourn shall be in order at any time, except as follows: (i) When repeated without
20 intervening business or discussion; (ii) when made as an interruption of a Councilmember while
21 speaking; (iii) when the previous question has been moved; and (iv) while a vote is being taken.

22 2. Motion To Lay On The Table.

23 The purpose of the motion is to terminate further consideration of the subject being
24 discussed, without qualification. The effect of the motion, if approved, is to not only end
25 discussion on any other motion being considered, but to preclude any other motion being made.
26 A motion to table requires a second, is not amendable, and is not debatable. The foregoing shall
27 not preclude any Councilmember from placing the subject on an agenda for a later City Council
28 meeting.

1 3. Motion to Call for The Question (Close Debate).

2 The Councilmember moving any item before the City Council, including, the adoption of
3 an ordinance or resolution, or the Mayor Pro Tem, shall have the privilege of moving to close the
4 debate and at once to take the vote on the immediately pending question. Such a motion requires
5 a second and is not debatable, and is not amendable, and shall require a two-thirds vote of
6 Councilmembers present and voting for adoption. Such a motion also requires that each
7 Councilmember be afforded at least one opportunity to speak on the item before closing the
8 debate. The making of the motion shall not constitute a violation of Section V of these rules.

9 4. Motion To Postpone To A Certain Time/Day.

10 A motion to postpone to time certain is amendable, and is debatable as to the propriety of
11 postponement and as to time set in the motion. The purpose of the motion is to postpone the
12 subject under discussion to another, specified time.

13 5. Motion to Substitute.

14 A motion to substitute the motion under consideration with another motion requires a
15 second, is not amendable and is debatable. A motion to substitute must be germane to the subject
16 and compatible with the underlying purpose of the motion under consideration; and if passed, the
17 substitute motion will, by its own action, eliminate the necessity to vote on the motion being
18 substituted. If the substitute motion fails to pass, debate will resume on the motion previously
19 being contested. Only two substitute motions shall be on the floor at any time.

20 6. Motion to Amend.

21 A motion to amend the motion under consideration requires a second, but the proposed
22 amendment must be germane, or related, to the main motion, and is debatable. A motion to
23 amend is defined as amending a motion that is on the floor and has been seconded, by inserting or
24 adding, striking out, or striking out and inserting words within the main motion. The proposed
25 amendment is voted on first, and if adopted, there is a vote on the main motion as amended. If
26 the motion fails, debate will resume on the main motion.

27 ///

28 ///

1 7. Motion To Reconsider.

2 A motion to reconsider any action taken by the City Council must be based upon a
3 different state of facts and must be made not later than the second succeeding official regular
4 meeting of the City Council. Such a motion can only be made by a member who voted with the
5 majority. The motion to reconsider must be specifically agendized as a motion for
6 reconsideration and cannot be acted upon on under Future Agenda Items. However, if the motion
7 to reconsider is made at the same Council meeting when the motion was originally adopted, it
8 does not have to be included on the agenda. At the time such reconsideration is heard by the City
9 Council, testimony shall be limited to the alleged facts in support of the motion. No question
10 shall be twice reconsidered, except by unanimous consent of the City Council, except that action
11 relating to any contract may be reconsidered at any time before the final execution thereof.

12 These motions shall have precedence in the order indicated. Any such motion, except to
13 adjourn, amend, or substitute, shall be put to a vote without discussion.

14 E. RULES OF DISCUSSION

15 1. Presiding Officer May Debate: The presiding officer may debate from the chair,
16 subject only to such limitations of debate as are by these rules imposed on all members, and shall
17 not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges as a member of the City Council by reason of
18 acting as the presiding officer.

19 2. Getting the Floor: Improper References to be Avoided: Every member desiring to
20 speak shall utilize the electronic call device to gain the attention and priority of the presiding
21 officer, and upon recognition by the presiding officer, shall confine him/herself to the question
22 under debate, avoiding all personalities and indecorous language.

23 3. Interruptions: A Councilmember, once recognized, shall not be interrupted when
24 speaking unless it be to call the person to order, or as herein otherwise provided. If a
25 Councilmember, while speaking, be called to order, the Councilmember shall cease speaking until
26 the question of order be determined, and, if in order, shall be permitted to proceed.

27 4. Division of Question: If the question contains two or more divisional propositions,
28 each of which is capable of standing as a complete proposition if the others are removed, the

1 presiding officer may, and upon request of a Councilmember shall (unless appealed), divide the
2 question.

3 5. Withdrawal of Motion: A motion may not be withdrawn by the mover without the
4 consent of the Councilmember seconding it.

5 6. Voting: On the passage of every motion, the vote shall be taken by electronic
6 voting device and entered in full upon the record. If the device is inoperable, the vote shall be
7 taken by roll call voice vote recorded by the City Clerk. The presiding officer shall announce the
8 result of the vote. No member shall be excused from voting except on matters involving the
9 consideration of the Councilmembers own official conduct, or where a conflict of interest exists.
10 Refusal to vote without excuse shall be an affirmative vote.

11 F. ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL

12 Any person desiring to address the City Council shall first secure the permission of the
13 presiding officer to do so. Under the following headings of business, unless the presiding officer
14 rules otherwise, any interested person shall have the right to address the City Council in
15 accordance with the following conditions and upon obtaining recognition by the presiding officer:

16 1. Speakers. Any person desiring to provide public comment or public testimony,
17 shall do so in accordance with Section X.C. Each person addressing the City Council shall step
18 up before the City Council and may give their name and neighborhood in an audible tone of voice
19 for the record. All remarks shall be addressed to the City Council as a body and not to any
20 Councilmember, Mayor or staff member thereof.

21 2. Written Communications. Interested parties or their authorized representatives
22 may address the City Council by written communications in regard to matters of concern to them.
23 Communications received by the City Clerk prior to close of business on the day prior to a City
24 Council meeting shall be submitted to the City Council at the meeting if related to an item which
25 is on the agenda for that meeting.

26 3. Public Hearings. Interested persons or their authorized representatives may
27 address the City Council by reading protests, petitions, or communications relating to matters then
28 under consideration, subject to the time limitations imposed by the City Council.

1 4. Public Comment. Interested persons may address the City Council on any issue
2 concerning City business during the period assigned to Oral Communications, except comments
3 relating to appeals before the City Council where the City Council must make its decision based
4 on the written record or set the matter for public hearing.

5 G. ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL AFTER MOTION MADE

6 When a motion is pending before the City Council, no person other than a Councilmember
7 shall address the City Council without first securing the permission of the presiding officer or
8 City Council to do so.

9 XIII

10 CITY COUNCIL STANDING COMMITTEES AND REGIONAL
11 ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATION

12 A. STANDING COMMITTEE NUMBER, NAMES, COMPOSITION, AND
13 APPOINTMENTS AND REGIONAL ORGANIZATION APPOINTMENTS

14 1. There shall be eight Standing Committees of the City Council entitled
15 Development, Community Services and Youth, Finance, Governmental Affairs, Utility
16 Services/Land Use/Energy Development, Public Safety, Transportation, and Mayor's Nominating
17 and Screening.

18 2. Following each election and/or appointment to fill a City Council vacancy,
19 reorganization of City Council Standing Committee and regional organizational assignments shall
20 be considered by the Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee for a recommendation to the
21 City Council.

22 3. Each Standing Committee shall be comprised of three members. Each
23 Councilmember shall serve as Chair, Vice-Chair, and Member of three Committees, respectively.

24 4. The Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee shall be comprised of the
25 Mayor who shall serve as Chair and the members of the Governmental Affairs Committee. The
26 Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee shall assist in the board/commission appointment
27 process as provided in Section XIV of this resolution, recommend to the City Council (a)
28 nominees for the annual City Spirit Award, (b) structure and/or appointments to ad hoc citizen

1 committees as requested by the City Council, and (c) any other matters referred by the City
2 Council or board/commission.

3 5. For Standing Committee and regional organization appointments, preferences of
4 senior elected officials shall be honored. However, with five (5) affirmative votes, the City
5 Council may appoint a non-senior member. The Mayor and Councilmembers shall forward
6 preferences on Standing Committee assignments to the City Clerk to be shared at the Mayor's
7 Nominating and Screening Committee Meeting.

8 Initially, each elected official shall be limited to two (2) regional organizational
9 appointments. Remaining vacant positions and any appointment declined by an elected official
10 shall be filled by seniority of elected officials desiring such appointments. There shall be no
11 limitation to the number of appointments as "Alternate" to regional organizations. The provisions
12 of this section shall not apply to organizations where the City Council is not the appointing
13 authority.

14 "Seniority" shall be honored as to the elected office currently held.

15 **B. REFERRAL OF MATTERS TO CITY COUNCIL STANDING COMMITTEES**

16 1. Generally, all items agendized for City Council Standing Committees must first be
17 referred by the City Council for review and a recommendation to the City Council within 120
18 days, subject to the exceptions set forth below or as otherwise modified by the City Council.

19 2. The Annual Year-End Finance Report by the Public Utilities Department is
20 automatically referred directly to the Finance Committee for review and a recommendation to the
21 City Council within 120 days.

22 3. All Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency matters are automatically
23 referred to the Development Committee for review and a recommendation to the Successor
24 Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Board within 120 days.

25 4. All requests for comments on projects within the City's sphere of influence are
26 automatically referred to the Utility Services/Land Use/Energy Development Committee for
27 review and submission of comments to the County of Riverside or as a recommendation to the
28 City Council as time permits.

1 5. With the concurrence of the Committee Chairperson and the City Manager, an
 2 item may be sent directly to a Council committee without City Council referral. If a matter is so
 3 referred to a Council committee, the committee agenda will note such fact on the face of the
 4 agenda. Such referrals are not required to be forwarded to the City Council for action following
 5 committee review. The below guidelines shall be considered for such referrals.

Policy Committee	Types of Items Referred to the Committee
Housing and Homelessness	Housing and homelessness solutions
Economic Development, Placemaking, and Branding/Marketing	Economic development, placemaking and branding/marketing
Financial Performance and Budget	City Budget, Measure Z, performance measures, audits, and other financial matters
Inclusiveness, Community Engagement, and Governmental Processes	City board and commission structures, ethics and other policy matters
Mayor’s Nominating & Screening Committee	Nominations for appointments to City boards and commissions and City Spirit Award; and following each election and/or appointment to fill a City Council vacancy, reorganization of City Council Standing Committee and regional organization assignments
Safety, Wellness and Youth	Public Safety, wellness programs, food sources and

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

	agriculture, recreation, disabilities, seniors, libraries, museum, and youth activities
Mobility and Infrastructure	Transportation, sewer, airport, utilities, and public works
Land Use, Sustainability and Resilience	Land use, planning, development, sustainability and resilience

6. Board and Commissions, by majority vote, may forward matters to any City Council Standing Committee, as appropriate. The below guidelines shall be considered for such referrals.

BOARD/COMMISSION	CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE
Airport Commission	Mobility and Infrastructure and Financial Performance and Budget
Budget Engagement Commission	Financial Performance and Budget
Community Police Review Commission	Safety, Wellness, and Youth
	Financial Performance and Budget
Cultural Heritage Board	Land Use, Sustainability, and Resilience
	Economic Development, Placemaking, and Branding/Marketing
	Financial Performance and Budget

1	Commission on Disabilities	Safety, Health, Wellness, and Youth
2		Financial Performance and Budget
3	Board of Ethics	Inclusiveness and Community Engagement
4		Financial Performance and Budget
5	Human Relations Commission	Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee
6		Financial Performance and Budget
7	Human Resources Board	Inclusiveness and Community Engagement
8		Financial Performance and Budget
9	Board of Library Trustees	Safety, Wellness and Youth
10		Financial Performance and Budget
11	Commission on Aging	Safety, Wellness and Youth
12		Financial Performance and Budget
13	Museum of Riverside Board	Safety, Wellness, and Youth
14		Financial Performance and Budget
15	Park and Recreation Commission	Safety, Wellness, and Youth
16		Financial Performance and Budget
17	Planning Commission	Land Use, Sustainability, and Resilience
18		Economic Development, Placemaking, and
19		Branding/Marketing
20		Financial Performance and Budget
21	Board of Public Utilities	Mobility and Infrastructure
22		Financial Performance and Budget
23	Transportation Board	Mobility and Infrastructure
24		Financial Performance and Budget
25		
26	///	
27	///	
28	///	

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

XIV

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES

A. For vacancies on the Community Police Review Commission, Board of Ethics, Planning Commission and Board of Public Utilities, the Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee shall review applications submitted and identify applicants for interview with the Mayor and City Council. The City Clerk shall notify the City Council of those selected for interview. The Mayor and each member of the City Council may add an additional applicant for interview, if desired. Appointments shall be made by the Mayor and City Council immediately following the interviews. With a full quorum, five affirmative votes are required.

B. For Citywide vacancies on any of the remaining boards and commissions, the Mayor shall recommend an applicant for appointment by the Mayor and City Council. For Ward-specific seats, the Councilmember for the Ward shall recommend an applicant for appointment by the Mayor and City Council. With a full quorum, five affirmative votes are required. With less than a full quorum, four affirmative votes are required.

C. For appointments to City Council citizen ad hoc committees, the City Council shall affirmatively select one of the following options:

1. Option 1: The Mayor's Nominating and Screening Committee shall review the applications submitted and identify applicants for interview with the Mayor and City Council. The City Clerk shall notify the City Council of those selected for interview. The Mayor and each member of the City Council may add an additional applicant for interview, if desired. The Mayor and City Council shall interview, make the appointments and select the Chair; or

2. Option 2: By formal motion, the City Council shall authorize each member of the City Council to select a member from their Ward and the Mayor to select two at-large members. The ad hoc committee shall elect a Chair from among its members; or

3. Option 3: By formal motion, any other method of appointment as desired by the City Council.

D. Board/commission members shall make every effort to notify the Chairperson or his/her designee no later than 24 hours prior to any regular meeting of his/her intent not to attend said

1 meeting. A member's inability to provide 24 hours advance notice shall not preclude the
2 board/commission from exercising its discretion to excuse said absence as outlined in Section
3 805 of the City Charter. If a member of a board or commission absents himself/herself from
4 three consecutive regular meetings of such board or commission, unless by permission of such
5 board or commission expressed in its official minutes, or is convicted of a crime of moral
6 turpitude, or ceases to be a qualified elector of the City, the office shall become vacant and shall
7 be so declared by the City Council.

8 E. The City Clerk shall provide quarterly attendance reports to the Mayor and City Council.

9 F. The City Clerk shall notify the Mayor for Citywide seats and the appropriate
10 Councilmember for Ward specific seats for direction to be taken in the event of either of the
11 following conditions: (a) a board/commission member is absent unexcused from three
12 consecutive regular meetings of the board/commission; or (b) a board/commission member is
13 absent, whether excused or unexcused, from more than one-third of the regularly scheduled
14 meetings in any calendar year.

15 G. Resignations from City boards and commissions shall be effective immediately upon
16 receipt by the City Clerk, who shall then forward a received resignation to the City Council for
17 filing. Future effective dates noted in writing and submitted as part of, or with any resignation,
18 shall be honored to the extent the resignee remains eligible. Withdrawal of a resignation for
19 desired continued service must be submitted to the City Clerk in writing and must include the
20 reason for withdrawing. The City Clerk shall forward any withdrawal to the Mayor and City
21 Council, who may consider and approve the withdrawal. A resignation shall remain in effect
22 notwithstanding the submission of a withdrawal, unless and until the Mayor and City Council
23 approve the withdrawal.

24 H. A partial term of more than one year shall be considered a full term. Residents
25 appointed mid-year to boards and commissions shall serve full terms of up to and not-to-exceed
26 four year, expiring on March 1st of the corresponding year.

27

28

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

XV

COUNCIL REQUESTS

A. All Council requests dealing with policy issues and those requests which may be construed as direction, go through the City Manager, except for general inquiries or questions in which case the City Council may go to the Department Heads or key staff in the City Manager’s Office. Councilmembers may also deal directly with the City Attorney, City Clerk or other staff appointed by the City Council.

B. Any request from the City Council requiring funding must go through the City Manager. The City Manager will respond in a timely manner.

XVI

ADMINISTRATION

A. The City Council will review and revise the City Council norms and procedures as needed or every two (2) years.

B. During City Council discussions, deliberations, and proceedings, the Mayor has been designated with the primary responsibility to ensure that the City Council, staff and members of the public adhere to the Council’s norms and procedures.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. ~~23437-23559~~ is hereby repealed.

ADOPTED by the City Council this ___ day of _____, 2020.

WILLIAM R. BAILEY, III
Mayor of the City of Riverside

ATTEST:

COLLEEN J. NICOL
City Clerk of the City of Riverside

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

I, Colleen J. Nicol, City Clerk of the City of Riverside, California, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the City Council of said City at its meeting held on the ___ day of _____, 2020, by the following vote, to wit:

Ayes:

Noes:

Abstain:

Absent:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of Riverside, California, this _____ day of _____, 2020.

City Clerk of the City of Riverside

CA 20-0769

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	AUTHORITY.....	1
II.	ACT IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST.....	2
III.	ADVOCACY.....	2
IV.	DUTIES.....	2
	A. Duties of Mayor; Mayor Pro Tempore.....	2
	B. Duties of Mayor and Council Members.....	4
	C. Motions to Be Stated by Presiding Officer.....	4
	D. Decorum.....	4
	E. Votes Required to Take Action.....	4
	F. Voting Disqualification.....	4
	G. Participation on Non-Profit Boards of Directors and Conflicts of Interest.....	5
	H. Mayor and Council Members to Avoid Improper Consideration of Pending or Contemplated Matters.....	6
V.	ROLE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL.....	6
	A. Mayor and City Council Conduct in General.....	6
	B. Mayor and City Council Conduct with One Another.....	7
	C. Mayor, City Council and City Manager Conduct with Staff.....	7
	D. Mayor and City Council Conduct with the Public.....	8
	E. Mayor and City Council Conduct with Other Agencies.....	8
	F. Mayor and City Council Conduct with Boards and Commissions.....	9
	G. Council Conduct with Standing City Council Committees.....	9
	H. Mayor and City Council Conduct with the Media.....	9
	I. Obtaining the Floor.....	10
VI.	ROLE OF CITY STAFF.....	10
VII.	ROLE OF THE PUBLIC.....	11
VIII.	MEETINGS.....	12
	A. Call to Order - Presiding Officer.....	12
	B. Roll Call.....	12
	C. Quorum Call.....	12
	D. City Council Meeting Schedule.....	12
	E. Adjourned Meetings.....	13
	F. Special Meetings.....	13
	G. Closed Sessions.....	13
	H. Emergency Meetings.....	14

///
///

1	IX.	AGENDA	15
2		A. Declaration of Policy	15
3		B. Definitions	15
4		C. Procedure For Bringing Matters Before City Council	16
5		1. Persons Who May Place Matters on the Agenda	16
6		2. Scheduling Public Hearings Mandated by State, Federal or Local Statute	17
7		3. Submission of Agenda Items	17
8		4. Preparation of the Packet	17
9		5. Posting of Agenda	17
10		6. Distribution of the Packet	17
11		7. Failure to Meet Deadlines	18
12		D. Agenda-Setting Meeting	20
13		E. Consent Calendar	21
14		F. Agenda Sequence and Order of Business	21
15	X.	CONDUCT OF MEETING	22
16		A. Order of Discussion	22
17		B. Consent Calendar Items Called up for Discussion	23
18		C. Communications from the Audience	23
19		D. Public Hearings	24
20		E. Public Discussion	24
21		F. Time Limitation for Public Testimony at Public Hearings and Public Discussion	24
22	XI.	FACILITIES	25
23		A. Council Chamber Capacity	25
24		B. Alternate Facilities for City Council Meetings	25
25	XII.	PROCEDURAL MATTERS	26
26		A. Persons Authorized to Sit at Tables	26
27		B. Decorum	26
28		C. Enforcement of Decorum	27
29		D. Precedence of Motions	27
30		1. Motion to Adjourn	27
31		2. Motion to Lay On the Table	27
32		3. Motion to Call for the Question (Close Debate)	28
33		4. Motion to Postpone to a Certain Time/Day	28
34		5. Motion to Substitute	28
35		6. Motion to Amend	28
36		7. Motion to Reconsider	29
37		E. Rules of Discussion	29
38		1. Presiding Officer May Debate	29
39		2. Getting the Floor	29
40		3. Interruptions	29
41		4. Division of Question	29
42		5. Withdrawal of Motion	30
43		6. Voting	30

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

F. Addressing the City Council 30
 1. Speakers 30
 2. Written Communications 30
 3. Public Hearings 30
 4. Public Comment 31
G. Addressing the City Council After Motion Made 31

XIII. CITY COUNCIL STANDING COMMITTEES AND REGIONAL ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATION..... 31
 A. Standing Committee Number, Names, Composition, and Appointments and Regional Organization Appointments 31
 B. Referral of Matters to City Council Standing Committees..... 32
XIV. BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEES 36
XV. COUNCIL REQUESTS 38
XVI. ADMINISTRATION 38